I
2

=] Ch

—

Conresy of www.iptrademarkattorney.com

Damml 4 Cikle, B84, M S3%,3708
chamaiin@ar . ram

Kraim R KEosindu, Hey, Mo 157,355
R nararkifal iz, oo
H?H 5“; .n:“ s 5K
r reel M
Sanzi Mo . sl E01-121
Felrmhone: (35 A5 -M47
Telefax: (3 10) 394377

Aldlmry= bis PEinLill,

KIREY MtIRGA N DlvE 57 STEMS, INC,

LINFI'FID STAVES DISTRICT EﬂURj‘
LA

CoNFORM CORY
= - :
| cooE |

- b |

-*n

R —f
II =L W =

#Tg am (1
Il r =~ = o

s

P im

T4 =

-

CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALYFOR

Kikey MorGan IVE SYSTEMS, JEY(OR-08 2 58 Ee

T2, 8o o e carpaedaion,
IEEELH 4

.

UNIVERSAL SCUHA _
EHMETEIBLTTORS, a protnickprsnip,

MeFencdani

COMPLAINT FOR:

(1} INFRIMGEMEMNT OF A
FENFRALLY RELGLETERE
THATIFNARK:

iz} E’%ﬁrﬁ'ﬂm“"‘“m OF

(3 VIOLATION OF
ANTICYBERQU ATTING

() LA MM LA
THADEMARK
INFRIMGEMERT;

12 CNFAIR COMPETITION
CHNOER STATE LAW

NMEMAND FOR JURY TERIAL

Tar ils Complawl, Flaim I allogss a9 Tallgws:

r’ﬁ}?}

)



www.iptrademarkattorney.com

T HOMASLLP
Attorneys at Law

&

CisLo

SUITE 500
1333 2nd Street
SANTA MONICA, CALIFORNIA 90401 -4110

Telephone: (310) 451 -0647

Facsimile: (310) 394 -4477

www.cislo.com

Courtesy of www.iptrademarkattorney.com

O 00 1 O W»n K~ W N —

N NN NN N N N N e e e e e e e
0O I O WD K~ W N = O O 0 9 O D A W N = O

PARTIES

1. Plaintiff Kirby Morgan Dive Systems, Inc. (“Kirby Morgan”) is a
California corporation having its principal place of business at 1430 Jason Way,
Santa Maria, CA 93455. Kirby Morgan is a leading innovator and industry leader
in dive equipment and has a long tradition of innovation, providing the highest
quality and superior performance that divers have come to expect in a Kirby
Morgan product. Kirby Morgan is seeking injunctive relief with respect to the
claims presented in this complaint. At this time Kirby Morgan is not seeking
monetary damages on its trademark infringement claims to prevent Universal from
receiving a defense of its claims from any insurance carrier and the amount of

economic damages is not known.
2. Defendant Universal Scuba Distributors (“Universal Distributors™) is a
proprietorship that provides dive equipment and related products and has a place of

business at 14230 Westheimer Road, Houston, Texas 77077.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

3. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to
28 U.S.C. 88 1331 and 1338(a) as it arises under Acts of Congress related to
trademarks. Additionally, the Court has subject matter jurisdiction over Kirby
Morgan’s federal trademark infringement claim pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1121. The
Court has subject matter jurisdiction over Kirby Morgan’s common law trademark
infringement claim and its state law unfair competition claim pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
8 1367, as the facts giving rise to Kirby Morgan’s claims arise from the same

common nucleus of operative facts.
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4, This Court has personal jurisdiction over Universal Distributors as it is
doing  Dbusiness in  this judicial  district through its  websites,
www.universaldistributors.us and www.kirbymorgandivers.com, which advertise,
display, and offer for sale scuba diving equipment and related products. On
information and belief, Universal Distributors has sold and is selling its products
and services to customers in this judicial district by way of its websites,
distributors, or direct contact by Universal Distributors or one of its related entities.
Universal Distributors knowingly caused an effect in this judicial district through
unconsented use of Kirby Morgan’s federally registered trademarks KIRBY
MORGAN, KIRBY MORGAN DIVE SYSTEMS, INC., and helmet designs even
though KIRBY MORGAN has been in use since 1967, over forty (40) years;
KIRBY MORGAN DIVE SYSTEMS, INC. has been in use since 2002, over six (6)
years; and the helmet designs have been in use since as early as 1977, over thirty
(30) years.

5. Venue is proper in this judicial district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)

as Universal has committed acts of infringement in this judicial district.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

6. Plaintiff Kirby Morgan is a California corporation located in Santa
Maria, California and is a leading innovator and industry leader in dive equipment.
Kirby Morgan is commonly known as “Kirby Morgan” to its dealers, end
customers, suppliers, and others in the dive equipment industry.

7. Kirby Morgan helmet designs are registered with the U.S. Patent and
Trademark Office under U.S. Registration Nos. 2,634,033, 2,670,929, 2,852,306,
2,801,683, and 2,803,929 (see Exhibit 1).
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8. Kirby Morgan owns several additional trademarks, service marks,
trade names, and logos, including KIRBY MORGAN (U.S. Reg. No. 1,767,264)
and KIRBY MORGAN DIVE SYSTEMS, INC. (U.S. Reg. No. 3,333,120). See
Exhibit 2.

Q. Over the years Kirby Morgan has expended substantial sums of money
and effort, and extensively advertised and successfully promoted its products and
marks in numerous trade publications and at trade shows. Kirby Morgan has
established a valuable business and substantial good will in the design of its

products in the use of its products in interstate commerce and throughout the world.

10. Kirby Morgan has sold relatively large dollar volumes of its
proprietary products worldwide through its authorized dealers and its products have
met with wide and popular approval. As a result of Kirby Morgan’s authorized
sales and promotion and the distinctive appearance of Kirby Morgan’s products,
Kirby Morgan’s products have acquired a secondary meaning and have come to be
known to the trade and to its customers throughout the United States, and the world,
as identifying high quality products sold by Kirby Morgan.

11.  Asaresult, Kirby Morgan’s trademarks are well known throughout the
United States and other parts of the world, and Kirby Morgan has developed
substantial goodwill and recognition among its U.S. customers and the U.S. public
at large in its Kirby Morgan trademarks and dive equipment products.

12.  Universal Distributors registered the domain name
www.kirbymorgandivers.com on November 19, 2008. See attached Exhibit 3
showing the Whols Database data showing Universal Distributors’ registration.
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13.  On the www.kirbymorgandivers.com webpage, Universal Distributors
uses images of Kirby Morgan’s registered helmets with the KIRBY MORGAN
mark emblazoned across the top over the large helmet images. See Exhibit 4. The
webpage then automatically resolves and/or has links to Universal Distributors’
other website at www.universaldistributors.us where it sells dive products. On the
www.universaldistributors.us website, Universal Distributors uses another image of
Kirby Morgan’s registered helmet designs under a link to “commercial” products.
See Exhibit 4.

14.  Universal Distributors has used in commerce the term KIRBY
MORGAN, or formatives thereof, and has used registered images of Kirby
Morgan’s helmets as trademarks for its advertisement, sale, and promotion of dive
equipment.  Universal Distributors’ use of the KIRBY MORGAN marks, or
formatives thereof, and images of the registered helmets are exactly the same as
Kirby Morgan’s trademarks for the same or related dive equipment and products.

CLAIM I — INFRINGEMENT OF FEDERALLY
REGISTERED TRADEMARKS
(15U.5.C. §1114(1))

15.  Plaintiff repeats and incorporates the allegations set forth in paragraphs
1 through 14 above.

16.  Kirby Morgan owns U.S. Trademark Registration No. 1,767,264 for
KIRBY MORGAN for diving suits; namely wetsuits and dry suits; underwater life
support system used in scuba diving comprised of a mask, regulator and tank, sold
separately and as a unit; underwater life support systems used in scuba diving

comprised of a helmet, regulator, deck breathing gas controller and umbilical cord,

5
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sold separately and as a unit, in International Class 009, registered on April 27,
1993; and U.S. Trademark Registration No. 3,333,120 for KIRBY MORGAN
DIVE SYSTEMS, INC. for diving equipment, namely diving helmets, regulators,
head protectors, masks, mask bags, cold water neck dams, deck breathing gas
controller, breathing valves, exhaust valves, rebreathers, underwater life support
system used in scuba diving comprised of mask, regulator and tank, sold separately
and as a unit, non-recreational underwater life support system used in scuba diving
comprised of a helmet, demand breathing regulators, deck breathing gas controller,
breathing valves, exhaust valves, and umbilical cord, sold separately and as unit,
and spare parts for same, in International Class 040, registered on Nov. 13, 2007.
See attached Exhibit 2.

17. Kirby Morgan also owns five (5) registrations for its helmet designs
bearing U.S. Reg. No. 2,634,033 for use in connection with diving equipment;
namely diving helmets, regulators, head protectors, masks, mask bags, cold water
neck dams, wet suits, deck breathing gas controllers, and spare parts for same in
International Class 009, and for t-shirts and sweatshirts in International Class 25,
registered on October 15, 2002; U.S. Reg. No. 2,670,929 for use in connection with
diving equipment, namely helmets in International Class 009 and for t-shirts and
sweatshirts in International Class 025, registered on January 7, 2003; U.S. Reg. No.
2,852,306 for diving equipment, namely helmets, in International Class 009,
registered on June 15, 2004; U.S. Reg. No. 2,801,683 for diving equipment, namely
helmets in International Class 009, and t-shirts and sweatshirts in International
Class 025, registered on January 6, 2004; and U.S. Reg. No. 2,803,929 for diving
equipment, namely diving helmets regulators, head protectors, masks, mask bags,
cold water neck cams, deck breathing gas controller, and spare parts for same in
International Class 009, for t-shirts, sweatshirts, and wet suits in International Class

025, and for the manufacture of diving equipment, namely diving helmets,

6
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regulators, head protectors, masks, mask bags, cold water neck dams, wetsuits, deck
breathing gas controllers, and spare parts for same, to order and/or specification of
others in International Class 40, registered on January 13, 2004. See Exhibit 1.

18.  Universal Distributors has used in commerce the KIRBY MORGAN
mark, or formatives thereof, and registered helmet designs as trademarks in
connection with the advertising of, sale of, or offer to sell dive equipment and
related products. Universal Distributors’ use, in relation to Kirby Morgan’s use of
its own marks will likely cause confusion or mistake, or will likely deceive the
public as to Universal Distributors’ products being associated or identified with or
being the same as those of Kirby Morgan.

19. Kirby Morgan did not consent to or authorize Universal Distributors’
adoption or commercial use of the term KIRBY MORGAN, or formatives thereof,
or use of the registered images of Kirby Morgan’s helmets for Universal
Distributors’ dive equipment.

20.  Universal Distributors therefore has infringed Kirby Morgan’s
trademarks in violation of its federal trademark rights under the Lanham Act, 15
U.S.C. 8§ 1051 et seq., particularly 15 U.S.C. 8§ 1114(2).

21.  Kirby Morgan’s marks are strong in light of the substantial marketing
and promotion of the Kirby Morgan trademarks for dive equipment over the past
more than thirty years, the substantial sales volume of the products and services
under its KIRBY MORGAN and helmet design marks, its critical acclaim, and its
widespread public recognition. Universal Distributors’ use of the confusingly
similar KIRBY MORGAN mark and use of the registered helmet images in
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connection with Universal Distributors’ dive products creates a likelihood of

confusion.

22.  Upon information and belief, Kirby Morgan avers that, at all times
relevant to this action, including when Universal Distributors first adopted the
KIRBY MORGAN mark, Universal Distributors knew of Kirby Morgan’s prior
adoption and widespread commercial use of the KIRBY MORGAN mark and
registered helmet designs in connection with dive equipment and products,
including all of the goods specified in Kirby Morgan’s federally registered
trademarks listed above. Universal Distributors’ infringement of the Kirby Morgan
marks is therefore willful, knowing, and deliberate.

23.  Kirby Morgan has no control over the composition or quality of the
goods sold under the confusingly similar Kirby Morgan marks by Universal
Distributors. As a result, to the extent Universal Distributors’ products are inferior
to Kirby Morgan’s, Kirby Morgan’s valuable goodwill, developed at great expense
and effort by Kirby Morgan, is being harmed by Universal Distributors’

unauthorized use of the confusingly similar mark, and is at risk of further damage.

24.  The goodwill of Kirby Morgan’s business under the KIRBY
MORGAN mark and the registered helmet designs is of enormous value, and Kirby
Morgan will suffer irreparable harm should Universal Distributors’ infringement be
allowed to continue to the detriment of Kirby Morgan’s reputation and goodwill.

25.  Universal Distributors’ infringement will continue unless enjoined.
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CLAIM Il - FALSE DESIGNATION OF ORIGIN
(15 U.S.C. 8§ 1125(a))

26.  Plaintiff repeats and incorporates the allegations set forth in paragraphs
1 through 25 above.

27. Kirby Morgan uses its KIRBY MORGAN mark and registered helmet
designs throughout the United States in connection with its dive equipment. Such
products include diving helmets, regulators, head protectors, masks, mask bags,
cold water neck dams, deck breathing gas controller, breathing valves, exhaust
valves, rebreathers, underwater life support system used in scuba diving comprised
of mask, regulator and tank, sold separately and as a unit, non-recreational
underwater life support systems used in scuba diving comprised of a helmet,
demand breathing regulators, deck breathing gas controller, breathing valves,
exhaust valves, and umbilical cord, sold separately and as unit, and spare parts for

same.

28. Kirby Morgan’s KIRBY MORGAN mark and registered helmet
designs are distinctive and distinguish Kirby Morgan’s dive equipment from that of
its competitors.

29. Kirby Morgan’s KIRBY MORGAN mark and registered helmet
designs are strong in light of the substantial marketing and promotion of Kirby
Morgan dive equipment by Kirby Morgan over the past more than thirty years, the
substantial sales volume of Kirby Morgan’s products, its critical acclaim, and its

widespread public recognition.
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30. Universal Distributors® use of the confusingly similar KIRBY
MORGAN mark and registered helmet designs in connection with Universal
Distributors’ dive equipment creates a likelihood of confusion with Kirby Morgan’s
use of its KIRBY MORGAN mark and registered helmet designs.

31. Kirby Morgan has no control over the composition or quality of the
goods sold under the confusingly similar KIRBY MORGAN mark and registered
helmet designs by Universal Distributors. As a result, to the extent Universal
Distributors’ products are inferior to Kirby Morgan’s, Kirby Morgan’s valuable
goodwill, developed at great expense and effort by Kirby Morgan, is being harmed
by Universal Distributors’ unauthorized use of the confusingly similar marks, and is
at risk of further damage.

32. The goodwill of Kirby Morgan’s business under the KIRBY
MORGAN mark, or formatives thereof, and registered helmet designs is of
enormous value, and Kirby Morgan will suffer irreparable harm should Universal
Distributors’ infringement be allowed to continue to the detriment of Kirby

Morgan’s reputation and goodwill.

33.  Upon information and belief, Kirby Morgan avers that, at all times
relevant to this action, including when Universal Distributors first adopted the
KIRBY MORGAN mark, or formatives thereof, and registered helmet designs,
Universal Distributors knew of Kirby Morgan’s prior adoption and widespread
commercial use of the KIRBY MORGAN mark and registered helmet designs in
connection with dive equipment and related products. Universal Distributors’
infringement of the KIRBY MORGAN mark, or formatives thereof, and

registered helmet designs is therefore willful, knowing, and deliberate.

10
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34.  Universal Distributors’ infringement will continue unless enjoined.

CLAIM 111 - VIOLATION OF THE ANTICYBERSQUATTING
CONSUMER PROTECTION ACT (15 U.S.C. 1125(d))

35.  Plaintiff repeats and incorporates the allegations set forth in paragraphs
1 through 34 above.

36. Kirby Morgan owns federal trademark registrations in its KIRBY
MORGAN and KIRBY MORGAN DIVE SYSTEMS, INC. marks (Exhibit 2).
These marks are strong marks in light of the substantial marketing and promotion
of Kirby Morgan dive equipment by Kirby Morgan over the past more than thirty
years, the substantial sales volume of Kirby Morgan’s products, its critical acclaim,
and its widespread public recognition. Over the years Kirby Morgan has expended
substantial sums of money and effort, and extensively advertised and successfully
promoted its products and marks in numerous trade publications and at trade shows.
Kirby Morgan has established a valuable business and substantial good will in the
design of its products in the use of its products in interstate commerce and
throughout the world.

37. Universal Distributors registered the www.kirbymorgandivers.com
domain name on November 19, 2008 (Exhibit 3).

38. Universal Distributors’ domain name www.kirbymorgandivers.com
encompasses the KIRBY MORGAN mark in its entirety, and uses the descriptive
term “divers” to further cause confusion with Kirby Morgan.

39. Upon information and belief, Kirby Morgan avers that, at all times
relevant to this action, including when Universal Distributors first registered the

www.kirbymorgandivers.com domain, Universal Distributors knew of Kirby

11
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Morgan’s prior adoption and widespread commercial use of the KIRBY
MORGAN mark in connection with dive equipment and products, including all of
the goods specified in Kirby Morgan’s federally registered trademarks listed
above. Universal Distributors’ registration of the www.kirbymorgandivers.com
domain name therefore shows its bad faith intent to profit from Kirby Morgan’s

marks.

40.  On the www.kirbymorgandivers.com webpage, Universal Distributors
uses images of Kirby Morgan’s registered helmets with the KIRBY MORGAN
mark emblazoned across the top over the large helmet images. See Exhibit 4. The
webpage then automatically resolves and/or has links to Universal Distributors’
other website at www.universaldistributors.us where it sells dive products.
Universal Distributors is therefore making no bona fide noncommercial or fair use
of Kirby Morgan’s marks and helmet designs in connection with the

www.kirbymorgandivers.com domain and website.

41. Also, the fact that the www.kirbymorgandivers.com webpage
automatically resolves and/or has links to Universal Distributors’ other website at
www.universaldistributors.us where it sells dive products shows Universal
Distributors’ intent to divert customers looking for Kirby Morgan to Universal

Distributors’ own website for its own commercial gain.

42. Universal Distributors’ bad faith intent to profit from Kirby
Morgan’s marks and helmet designs in connection with is
www.kirbymorgandivers.com website, and its registration and use of the domain,

will continue unless it is required to forfeit, cancel, or transfer the domain name.

12
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22
23
24
25
26
27
28

CLAIM IV - COMMON LAW TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT

43.  Plaintiff repeats and incorporates the allegations set forth in paragraphs
1 through 42 above.

44. Kirby Morgan owns and uses its KIRBY MORGAN mark, or
formatives thereof, and registered helmet designs and enjoys common law rights in
the trademark in California and throughout the United States in connection with
dive equipment. Such rights are senior and superior to any rights which Universal

Distributors may claim in and to its infringing mark.

45.  Universal Distributors’ use of the confusingly similar KIRBY
MORGAN mark, or formatives thereof, and registered helmet designs in
commerce is intentionally designed to mimic Kirby Morgan’s trademark for similar
products so as to likely cause confusion regarding the source of Universal
Distributors’ products, in that purchasers will be likely to associate such products
with, as originating with, or as approved by Kirby Morgan, all to the detriment of
Kirby Morgan.

46.  Universal Distributors’ infringement will continue unless enjoined.

CLAIMV -UNFAIR COMPETITION UNDER STATE LAW
(CALIFORNIA BUSINESS & PROFESSIONS CODE 88 17200, 17203)

47.  Plaintiff repeats and incorporates the allegations set forth in paragraphs
1 through 46 above.

13
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48.  Kirby Morgan’s KIRBY MORGAN and KIRBY MORGAN DIVE
SYSTEMS, INC. marks and registered helmet designs are wholly associated with
Kirby Morgan due to its extensive use of the marks, and as such, Kirby Morgan is
deserving of having its marks adequately protected with respect to the conduct of its
business.

49.  Universal Distributors’ use of a mark that is confusingly similar to
Kirby Morgan’s KIRBY MORGAN and KIRBY MORGAN DIVE SYSTEMS,
INC. marks and registered helmet designs constitutes unfair competition in that
customers and would-be customers are likely to be confused concerning the origin
of products using similar marks in the marketplace and false designations
concerning the origin of the mark.

50. Universal Distributors’ acts constitute unfair competition in violation
of the California Business and Professions Code 88 17200 and 17203.

51. Kirby Morgan avers that the acts of unfair competition undertaken by
Universal Distributors were intentionally and knowingly undertaken and were
directed toward perpetuating a business competing unfairly with Kirby Morgan and

were done with a willful disregard for the rights of Kirby Morgan.

52. By reason of Universal Distributors’ acts of unfair competition, Kirby
Morgan has suffered and will continue to suffer irreparable injury unless and until
this Court enters an order enjoining Universal Distributors from any further acts of
unfair competition. Universal Distributors’ continuing acts of unfair competition,
unless enjoined, will cause irreparable damage to Kirby Morgan in that it will have
no adequate remedy at law to compel Universal Distributors to cease such acts.
Kirby Morgan will be compelled to prosecute a multiplicity of actions, one action

14
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each time Universal Distributors commits such acts, and in each such action it will
be extremely difficult to ascertain the amount of compensation which will afford
Kirby Morgan adequate relief. Kirby Morgan is therefore entitled to an injunction
against further infringing conduct by Universal Distributors.

53. In doing the acts alleged, Universal Distributors acted fraudulently,
oppressively, and maliciously, and, as such, Kirby Morgan is entitled to exemplary

and punitive damages.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Kirby Morgan requests judgment against Universal
Distributors, as follows:

A.  For an order permanently enjoining Universal Distributors, and its
officers, directors, agents, servants, attorneys, and employees and all other persons
acting in concert with them, from: (1) committing any further acts of trademark
infringement, including using the KIRBY MORGAN mark, or formatives thereof,
and registered helmet designs in connection with any dive equipment; (2) using any
term or images that are likely to be confused with the KIRBY MORGAN mark, or
formatives thereof, and registered helmet designs asserted in this Complaint; (3)
representing directly or indirectly in any form or manner whatsoever that any
product it offers for sale is associated with or approved by Kirby Morgan when, in
fact, it is not; and/or (4) passing off or inducing or enabling others to sell or pass off
any non-Kirby Morgan product as a Kirby Morgan product or as a product endorsed
or approved by Kirby Morgan;

15
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B.  For an order directing Universal Distributors to file with this Court and
to serve on Kirby Morgan within thirty (30) days after service on Universal
Distributors of each injunction granted herein, or such extended period as the Court
may direct, a report in writing, under oath, setting forth in detail the manner and
form in which Universal Distributors has complied with the injunction and order of
the Court;

C. For a judgment that Universal Distributors has willfully and
deliberately infringed Kirby Morgan’s rights and that this is an exceptional case
entitling Kirby Morgan to enhanced damages under the Trademark Laws of the
United States;

D. For an award of costs, including attorneys’ fees, incurred in bringing
this action;

E. For a judgment awarding to Kirby Morgan prejudgment and post-
judgment interest until the award is fully paid;

F. For an order instructing Universal Distributors to forfeit or cancel the
www.kirbymorgandivers.com domain name, or for an order requiring the GoDaddy
registrar to transfer the domain to Kirby Morgan and to further preclude Universal
Distributors from obtaining any domain name registrations using Kirby Morgan’s

registered marks, or formatives thereof;

G.  For such other and further relief as this Court may deem just and
equitable under the circumstances; and
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